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FOUR JEFFERSON COUNTY CEMETERIES ADDED TO ALABAMA HISTORIC CEMETERY REGISTER

The Alabama Historical Commission recently added Oxmoor Cemetery in Oxmoor; Massey Cemetery in Bessemer; Union Hill Cemetery in Mountain Brook; and John Belcher Cemetery in Gardendale to the Alabama Historic Cemetery Register.

“The cemetery register is a prestigious listing of historic cemeteries in Alabama,” said Lee Anne Wofford, cemetery program coordinator.  “The AHC considers the notable historic cemeteries in this register to be particularly worthy of preservation and appreciation, and therefore deserving of this special recognition.”

There are now seventeen cemeteries in Jefferson County listed on the Alabama Historic Cemetery Register, which features 217 cemeteries statewide.  
Oxmoor Cemetery contains the earthly remains of those people who lived and worked in the Oxmoor community when the Oxmoor Iron Furnace was in operation from the 1880s until the 1920s. Oxmoor is one of Birmingham’s oldest industrial complexes and played a key role in the development of the Birmingham district.  This cemetery serves as an important reminder of the industrial history of this area and is a testament to those many workers and their families who called this area of Jefferson County home.  
Massey Cemetery contains over 100 burials, the oldest of which is that of Samuel G. Smithson who died in 1847.  Samuel was the infant son of Anson and Rhoda Worthington Smithson.  Rhoda Smithson’s brother was Benjamin P. Worthington who was one of the seven founders of the Elyton Land Company, which founded the City of Birmingham.  In 1844, Anson Smithson deeded to his son-in-law, James P. Massey, 620 acres of land, one of which was to become Massey Cemetery.  
Union Hill Cemetery, located on Hollywood Boulevard adjacent to U.S. Highway 280, is the final resting place for many early settlers of Shade’s Valley.  Although people who died prior to the 1870s are buried here, those graves were moved to Union Hill from other cemeteries.  The first actual burial here was around 1870.  A number of Confederate soldiers are buried at Union Hill, as are a few WWI and II soldiers, and at least one veteran from the Spanish-American War.  Families and friends of Union Hill Cemetery organized as an Alabama non-profit corporation in 1988 for the purpose of the care and maintenance of the cemetery.  

John Belcher Cemetery, located on Snow Rogers Road in Gardendale, contains the graves of at least John Belcher, Susan Hodges Belcher, Georgian Isabell Belcher, and an unknown little girl.  John Belcher, an early pioneer who settled in this area, donated land for the Ebenezer Methodist Church, which still stands on Snow Rogers Road.  Although the graves are no longer visible due to recent development in the area, many Belcher descendants have signed affidavits verifying that this cemetery was located on a knoll across the street from Ebenezer Church.
The Alabama Historical Commission administers the Alabama Historic Cemetery Program that gives aid to the general public, government officials, civic groups, and others in identifying, documenting, registering, and conserving Alabama’s historic cemeteries.

The Alabama Historic Cemetery Register officially recognizes and honors family and community cemeteries that were established at least 40 years ago. 

Listing in the state cemetery register is an honorary designation imposing no restrictions on property owners.  State law protects all cemeteries from willful desecration and destruction.  
To protect, preserve, and interpret Alabama’s historic places is the mission of the Alabama Historical Commission, Alabama’s state agency for historic preservation.
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